
Citizens Oversight Committee Special Meeting       
December 14, 2011 Page 1    

Posted: December 9, 2011 

 

 
Meeting of the Citizens Oversight Committee 

December 14, 2011 – 6:00 p.m. – Emery Bay Village Community Room 
160 Emery Bay Drive, Emeryville 

 
Emery Unified School District Guiding Principles: 

We Hold High Academic, Social, and Professional Expectations 
We Create a Sense of Family 

We Inspire and Support Innovation to End Racist and Classist Practices 
 

PUBLIC AGENDA 
 

A. OPENING CEREMONY/ROLL CALL (approximately 6:00 p.m.) 
Brian Carver, Chair     
Charlie Schuman, Vice Chair    
Francisco Aalbers, Member  
Lisa Carlisle, Member  
Betsy Cooley, Member    
Matt Johnson, Member 
Mitchell Fine, Member    
Ron Henry, Member     
Judy Inouye, Member 
Vacancy, Member 
Marcelline Krafchick, Member   
Kelly Maddox, Member 

Dave Martinez, Member 
Tom Rauch, Member 
Barbie Robinson, Member 
Andrea Sanchez Cortez, Member 
Rodney Wong, Member 
 
Staff 
Dr. Debbra Lindo, Superintendent of Schools 
Roy Miller, Project Director 
Dr. Hayin Kim, Director of Community and Youth 

Engagement 

 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (approximately 6:05 pm) 
C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (approximately 6:08 pm) 
D. REPORTS (approximately 6:10 p.m.) 

I. Superintendent’s Report 
II. COC Chairperson’s Report 
III. EUSD Staff Comments 
IV. COC Member Comments 

 
E. VISITORS – Public comment for items NOT on the agenda (approximately 6:20 p.m.)  
Citizens Oversight Committee Procedures: Community members are encouraged to attend Citizens Oversight Committee meetings. Each agenda 
contains a “Visitors” section, to allow for public comment on items NOT listed on the agenda.   Public comments on items that ARE on the agenda 
will be taken at the time of the item.  When recognized by the COC Chair, speakers are asked to limit their comments to three (3) minutes.  
 
This is a public meeting. Under the Ralph M. Brown Act, any person has the right to record these proceedings with an audio or video tape recorder 
so long as they do so without causing a persistent disruption. Cal. Gov. Code 54953.5(a). Please note that an official audio recording of the meeting 
is taking place and is available upon request to the Emery Unified School District.  All writings that are public records and relate to an agenda item 
below which are distributed to a majority of the Oversight Committee (including writings distributed to a majority of the Oversight Committee less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting noticed below) will be available at the Emery Unified School District, 4727 San Pablo Avenue, Emeryville, CA 
during normal business hours (8am to 4pm, Monday through Friday, excluding legal holidays) and at www.emeryvillecenter.org. Cal. Gov. Code. 
54957.5(a)-(d). 



Citizens Oversight Committee Special Meeting       
December 14, 2011 Page 2    

Posted: December 9, 2011 

 
F. COC ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS (approximately 6:25 pm), PUBLIC COMMENT INVITED  

1. BRAINSTORM DISCUSSION OF THE COC SUBCOMMITTEE AND LIAISON PROCESS  and its relationship to the 
COC roles and responsibilities. (30 minutes) 
 

2. FINANCE (10 minutes total) 
a. Subcommittee liaison report 
b. Additional input from staff 
c. Discussion 
 

3. SCOPE OF WORK (10 minutes total) 
a. Subcommittee liaison report 
b. Additional input from staff 
c. Discussion 

 
4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT (10 minutes total) 

a. Subcommittee liaison report 
b. Additional input from staff 
c. Discussion 

 
G. NEXT COC MEETING AGENDA ITEMS (January 18, 2012) 
 
H. COC CHAIR REPORT TO CITY-SCHOOLS 
 
I. COC COMMITTEE MEMBER CLOSING COMMENTS 
 
J. CALENDAR REVIEW 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability 
who requires reasonable accommodation related to COC meetings, may request assistance by contacting the Office of 
the Superintendent at (510) 601-4906. 
  

 



Citizens Oversight Committee Regular Meeting       
November 16, 2011 Page 1    

Posted: November 10, 2011 

 

 
Meeting of the Citizens Oversight Committee 

November 16, 2011 – 6:00 p.m. – Emery Bay Village Community Room 
160 Emery Bay Drive, Emeryville 

 
Emery Unified School District Guiding Principles: 

We Hold High Academic, Social, and Professional Expectations 
We Create a Sense of Family 

We Inspire and Support Innovation to End Racist and Classist Practices 
 

PUBLIC AGENDA 
 

A. OPENING CEREMONY/ROLL CALL (approximately 6:00 p.m.) 
Brian Carver, Chair     
Charlie Schuman, Vice Chair    
Francisco Aalbers, Member  
Lisa Carlisle, Member  
Betsy Cooley, Member    
Matt Johnson, Member 
Mitchell Fine, Member    
Ron Henry, Member     
Judy Inouye, Member 
Joy Kent, Member 
Marcelline Krafchick, Member   
Kelly Maddox, Member (ABSENT) 

Dave Martinez, Member (ABSENT) 
Tom Rauch, Member 
Barbie Robinson, Member (ABSENT) 
Andrea Sanchez Cortez, Member (ABSENT) 
Rodney Wong, Member (ABSENT) 
 
Staff 
Dr. Debbra Lindo, Superintendent of Schools 
Roy Miller, Project Director 
Dr. Hayin Kim, Director of Community and Youth 

Engagement 

 
B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (approximately 6:05 pm) 

I. Suggestion by member B. Cooley to move “Committee Comments” on agenda from item “I” to item “D.”  
**Motion to approve amended Agenda: M. Krafchick, 2nd B. Cooley, no objection. Agenda Approved. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (approximately 6:08 pm) 
I. Suggestion by member M. Krafchick to add subjects to action items in future minutes. 

**Motion to approve Minutes: M. Krafchick, 2nd M. Johnson, no objection. Minutes Approved. 
 

D. REPORTS (approximately 6:10 p.m.) 
I. Superintendent’s Report 

a. ESS soccer team made it to the Final 4 play-offs—first time in school history.  
b. ESS teachers are looking at precise ways to integrate “studio habits of mind” captured from the art 

world (learning the tools of trade, envisioning, reflecting, etc.) and how to use these tools and 
habits system wide in each discipline. 

c. The annual Civic Pride ceremony was attended by EUSD students, parents, and teachers with 24 
student essay contestants, and 8 recognitions. Sharon Wasserman was recognized for her 
volunteer and service work in the arts at Anna Yates Elementary. 



Citizens Oversight Committee Regular Meeting       
November 16, 2011 Page 2    

Posted: November 10, 2011 

d. On November 5th, 150+ parents attended the Academic Recognition Ceremony for African-
American and Latino Male Achievement at Hyatt Summerfield.  

e. EUSD’s Wellness Director presented a 3-year coordinated health plan at the last Board meeting. 
 

II. COC Chair’s Report 
a. He attended the finance subcommittee meeting.  
b. COC may not be in compliance with the Brown Act gov. code 54.9 and 52.B in regards to notice 

requirements of subcommittee meetings—to be discussed further with staff. 
c. Item “D4” was added to include a section for subcommittee reports; Chairperson suggests that 

report information should be organized between staff and subcommittee liaisons so information 
isn’t repeated.  

d. The Chair requests a staff update in regards to the filling of member Joy Kent’s seat. 
 

III. EUSD Staff Comments 
a. Emery EdFund wants to remind COC to fill out and return their Volunteer Applications ASAP. 
b. There are 4 applicants for Joy Kent’s seat and all are waiting for Board review.  

 
IV. Subcommittee Reports 

a. Finance 
1. Liaison meeting with EUSD staff took place on 11/08/11. 

a. Discussed school financial processes. References for CA school accounting and bond 
funding are listed and accessible to the public.  

b. Terri Ryland and Roy Miller will address Measure J funds legal authorities and the 
status of the revised budget and schedule at their report Item F, II Finance Report. 

c. Financial reports continue to be in development.  
d. Regular meeting time with staff is set for the 2nd Tuesdays of the month, 3pm-4pm. 

 
2. Finance subcommittee met on 11/09/11. 

a. The committee discussed roles, tasks, and responsibilities. Charlie Schuman was 
appointed chairman and note taker.  

b. Regular committee meeting time is set for 2nd Wednesdays of the month. 
 

b. Community Engagement 
1. Report will be covered in Item F3.  
2. No regular meeting time set. 

 
c. Scope of Work 

1. Nexus team had a meeting with city and district staff re: programming for ECCL. 
2. Nexus team is reviewing adjustments to design and will present it at Design Workshop 4. 
3. No regular meeting time set. 

 
E. VISITORS – Public comment for items NOT on the agenda (approximately 6:20 p.m.)  

I. M. Webber requested a community wide meeting to discuss the pros and cons of keeping Anna Yates 
Elementary School due to the new project budget. 

II. B. Donahue seconded M. Webber’s request and commended the change to the COC policy to comply with 
the Brown Act. 

Citizens Oversight Committee Procedures: Community members are encouraged to attend Citizens Oversight Committee meetings. Each agenda 
contains a “Visitors” section, to allow for public comment on items NOT listed on the agenda.   Public comments on items that ARE on the agenda 
will be taken at the time of the item.  When recognized by the COC Chair, speakers are asked to limit their comments to three (3) minutes.  
 
This is a public meeting. Under the Ralph M. Brown Act, any person has the right to record these proceedings with an audio or video tape recorder 
so long as they do so without causing a persistent disruption. Cal. Gov. Code 54953.5(a). Please note that an official audio recording of the meeting 
is taking place and is available upon request to the Emery Unified School District.  All writings that are public records and relate to an agenda item 



Citizens Oversight Committee Regular Meeting       
November 16, 2011 Page 3    

Posted: November 10, 2011 

below which are distributed to a majority of the Oversight Committee (including writings distributed to a majority of the Oversight Committee less 
than 72 hours prior to the meeting noticed below) will be available at the Emery Unified School District, 4727 San Pablo Avenue, Emeryville, CA 
during normal business hours (8am to 4pm, Monday through Friday, excluding legal holidays) and at www.emeryvillecenter.org. Cal. Gov. Code. 
54957.5(a)-(d). 
F. COC ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS (approximately 6:25 pm), PUBLIC COMMENT INVITED  

I. School Finance 101 (20 minutes) 
Terri Ryland will go over School Finance 101 with the COC. 

Terri Ryland discussed 1) Fund Account types and what they can be used for 2) Fund balancing, how it is 
calculated, and how it can be affected due to changes in staff, attendance, laws, regulations, etc. 3) 
Costs associated with operating a small school 4) What COC needs to know about SACS (Standardized 
Account Code Structure), example codes, and what to look for when reviewing Measure J financial 
reports. 

II. COC Review of October 2011 Financial Reports (10 minutes) 
Roy Miller and Terri Ryland will present the October financial information. 

a. No warrants report included this month. Subcommittee reviewed detailed budget reports at the 
11/08 liaison meeting. Financial subcommittee will work out a process to review and report out 
on expenditures.   

b. Rewriting of MOU 2 is to happen with the Board and City in the early months of next year.  
 
Question from B. Carver re: how financial advisors & underwriters of the bond were selected: 
 
Superintendent at the time interviewed and chose the team. Same advisors were used for Series 
A and QSCB—it is more cost efficient to use the same team, especially with the short span in 
between the two sales. 
 

III. COC Review of October 2011 Engagement Activities (10 minutes) 
Dr. Kim will present information relating to engagement activities for October 2011. 

a. Library program: Dr. Kim worked with Nexus library consultants to continue library program 
work, conducting focus groups with PTOs, ESS students, and k-6 groups from Rec.  

b. Fellows Program has started with 6 adult and 6 youth fellows. So far, fellows have attended 
Orientation and Workshop 1 to learn about ECCL project history and effective community 
organizing/storytelling. Dr. Kim is working with each fellow to produce a work plan and 
evaluation strategy to measure success. 

c. Community Design Workshop 4 is on November 19, 9:30AM-12:30PM at Emery Bay Village. 
d. Co-location concerns should be brought to school board meetings. Informing parents of co-

location policy is continuing.  
 

IV. COC Status Update on aligning project phasing with available funding (10 minutes) 
Roy Miller will present an ECCL project update for October 2011. 

a. Nexus team is working on a master plan for Phase I that will accomplish the program vision 
b. Roy Miller will not have material to present until Community Design Workshop 4, Nov. 19, 2011.  
c. Community Design Workshop 4 will be 2 parts: 1) Reviewing Phase I design plan 2) Aesthetics 

and environmental design preferences. 

Question from B. Carver re: contract with Turner Construction:  Is there a document to reflect the 
agreement between Turner and the City/School? 

EUSD has issued a letter of intent with Turner. A RFQ for a lease-leaseback builder was put out 
that included a preliminary service agreement stating the builder will work with the project from 
the beginning, prior to the start of construction. Preconstruction service hours are tracked, but 
not charged. Payment for preliminary services is paid for with savings the builder is able to make 
with construction costs.  



Citizens Oversight Committee Regular Meeting       
November 16, 2011 Page 4    

Posted: November 10, 2011 

Question that arose during discussion among members:  
If termination with Turner occurs before construction begins, what is our obligation to pay for 
preliminary services? 
 
This question can be moved to Scope of Work subcommittee to follow up with requested 
documents and information. 
 

G. NEXT COC MEETING AGENDA ITEMS (December 21, 2011) 
I. Financial Report 
II. Community Engagement Report 
III. Project Status Update 
IV. Subcommittee Reports 
V. Discussion re: organization and dissemination of information between staff, COC members, and 

subcommittees. 
 

**B. Carver suggests to cancel 12/21 meeting, and to hold a special meeting on 12/14 due to the holiday 
break. Motion: M. Johnson, Second: M. Fine, none opposed. 

 
H. COC CHAIR REPORT TO CITY-SCHOOLS (December 01, 2011) 

I. Subcommittee meetings 
II. School finance 101 
III. Financial report 
IV. Community engagement 
V. Project update 
VI. Meeting date change 

 
I. COC COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
J. CALENDAR REVIEW 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Pursuant to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, any individual with a disability 
who requires reasonable accommodation related to COC meetings, may request assistance by contacting the Office of 
the Superintendent at (510) 601-4906. 
  

 



Date: November 18, 2011 
 
To: Debbra Lindo, Roy Miller, Teri Ryland, Hayin Kim, Wendy Chew 
 
CC: Citizens' Oversight Committee 
 
From: Brian W. Carver, Chair, Citizens' Oversight Committee 
 
Re: Information Requests 
 
At the November 16 COC meeting, District Staff expressed concern that my requests 
for information were framed in a way so as to ascribe ill intent to Staff. I apologize if I 
gave that impression. However, it was my intention to convey that I am extremely 
dissatisfied with the current status of the Committee's outstanding requests for 
information and how information is being disseminated. I can be dissatisfied with the 
current state of things without believing it got to this point due to anyone's ill intent. I'm 
focused on understanding how we got here and finding solutions. I have two 
motivations: 
 
1. To ensure that the Committee has all the information it needs to do its job; and 
2. To provide all that information to the general public as well, both because the public 
simply should have easy access to it and because the public should be empowered to 
determine whether the Oversight Committee is adequately performing its duties. 
 
Perhaps you all don't experience this, but I have members of the public contact me who 
are following the COC's activities and who want to see the same documents that the 
COC has requested. When I tell them that information has been requested and will be 
provided soon, they expect it, and then when it isn't provided, they follow-up with me 
and express frustration. I just want these requests resolved. 
 
At the November 16 COC meeting District Staff indicated that we needed only to explain 
what we wanted with respect to information requests and that they were willing to do it. I 
feel like it has already been explained several times, but it has become clear that we are 
not communicating effectively, so I'm trying to remedy that—both at the meeting and 
now. 
 
Let's walk through the outstanding requests for information that I sent around via email 
on November 8th. 
 
“*Finance* 
Q1. What is the legal authority to use Measure J funds for bond issuance 
costs, such as underwriting fees, etc.? 
R1. Terri described a letter from bond counsel citing the Education code 
and will provide a copy to entire committee.” 
 



This question was first raised in our July meeting. At the October meeting, Terri 
explained that there was a letter from bond counsel regarding the specific section of the 
state Ed. Code that allows for this sort of expenditure, but she did not provide 
Committee with copies of this letter or a citation to the relevant Ed. Code sections and 
so she said she would provide a copy of this to the Committee as part of the packet for 
the November meeting. (@ 24:19-24:52). At the November 3 City / School meeting, 
during my Chair's report, I mentioned that this item was still outstanding in part in order 
to remind District Staff that we were still expecting to receive this information and I 
included it in my email of November 8th. However, it was not part of the packet for the 
November16 meeting and not provided at the meeting itself. It therefore remains 
outstanding and it should be both distributed to the entire Committee, as promised, and 
placed on the emeryvillecenter.org site. 
 
The response to this question is summarized in an email from William Kadi of Jones Hall, bond 
counsel to Emery Unified for Measure J, to Superintendent John Sugiyama.  A copy of this 
email was provided to Charles Schuman in October 2011 at the liaison subcommittee meeting 
between Charlie, Roy Miller and Terri Ryland.  It was also provided to Charles Schuman and 
Matt Johnson at the November liaison subcommittee meeting.  It has again been provided to 
the liaison subcommittee, now made up of Charles Schuman, Matt Johnson, and Betsy Cooley 
at their meeting with Terri and Roy on December 6, 2011.  It is also being distributed to the 
entire COC in the packets of the 12.14.11 COC meeting and is posted on the 
emeryvillecenter.org website on the COC page containing the COC packets for the 12.14.11 
meeting. 
 
 
“Q2. We were given an annual breakdown of the "Reimbursement, Prior Years" line 
item, but have requested a further itemization of each year by individual paid. 
R2. Terri reported this was in progress.” 
 
This question was also first raised in our July meeting. At the October meeting, Terri 
explained that she had just begun working on this and did not want to provide us with 
incomplete information, but that she would bring the itemization to our next meeting. 
(@24:56-25:14). At the November 3 City / School meeting, during my Chair's report, I 
mentioned that this item was still outstanding in part in order to remind District Staff that 
we were still expecting to receive this information and I included it in my email of 
November 8th. However, it was not part of the packet for the November 16 meeting and 
not provided at the meeting itself. It therefore remains outstanding and it should be both 
distributed to the entire Committee, as promised, and placed on the 
emeryvillecenter.org site.  
 
The response to this question is summarized in a set of documents that are being distributed 
to the entire COC in the packets of the 12.14.11 COC meeting and is posted on the 
emeryvillecenter.org website on the COC page containing the COC packets for the 12.14.11 
meeting. 
 



“Q3. Please provide a copy of the most detailed budget for the entire ECCL project that 
is available. We understand that this may change in the near term, but would like to see 
this anyway. 
R3. Terri reported that a two-page document was provided to Charlie with the numbers 
crossed out. Terri to provide a copy of this document to entire committee.” 
 
This request goes back several meetings as well, and was written down at least before 
the October meeting, as at that meeting, Terri reported discussing it with Charlie and 
providing him with a two-page document with the numbers crossed out due to them 
being out-of-date. (@26:02-26:34). At the November 3 City / School meeting, during my 
Chair's report, I mentioned that this item was still outstanding in part in order to remind 
District Staff that we were still expecting to receive this information and I included it in 
my email of November 8th. However, it was not part of the packet for the November16 
meeting and not provided at the meeting itself. It therefore remains outstanding and it 
should be both distributed to the entire Committee, as requested, and placed on the 
emeryvillecenter.org site. To be clear, and as I also mentioned at the City / School 
Committee meeting, the Committee understands that this budget is currently in flux but 
believes that this historical information is important nonetheless. For example, we can 
better understand the new detailed budget, once it is ready, if we are already familiar 
with the old one. 
 
The response to this question has been verbally presented to the COC at their meetings on a 
number of occasions.  The most detailed budget for the entire ECCL project is attached as 
Exhibit A to MOU #2 approved by both the City of Emeryville and the School District.  MOU #2 
has been posted on the emeryvillecenter.org website for a number of months.  Exhibit A to 
MOU #2 is also being distributed to the entire COC in the packets of the 12.14.11 COC meeting 
and is posted on the emeryvillecenter.org website on the COC page containing the COC 
packets for the 12.14.11 meeting.  
 
 “Q4. Can future financial reports group the warrants by bond project category and 
specifically can we get the August and September warrants listed by bond project code 
and, if possible, integrated with the greatest level of budget detail available? 
R4. Terri to work with Finance subcommittee on this.” 
 
We received an update on this at the November 16 meeting, learning that Terri is talking 
with the County Office of Education to see what different formats for the reports is 
possible. We expect an update on this at the next COC meeting, and if possible, at the 
next COC Finance Subcommittee meeting. 
 
A format for future financial reports was discussed and agreed to by the Finance Sub-
committee (Charles Schuman, Matt Johnson, and Betsy Cooley) at their meeting with Terri 
Ryland and Roy Miller on December 5, 2011.  Terri Ryland will use that format for reports that 
will be presented to the COC at the January 18, 2012 meeting and those reports will be for the 
months of November and December 2011.  Detailed financial reports have been reviewed at 
every finance liaison meeting and one such report was circulated, albeit page by page, at the 
November 16, 2011 meeting of the COC. 



 
“Q5. Can we get an estimate of how much additional bonding capacity is provided for 
each %-point that assessed valuation increases? 
R5. District Staff to investigate.” 
 
This question was raised at the October meeting. At the November 3 City / School 
meeting, during my Chair's report, I mentioned that this item was still outstanding in part 
in order to remind District Staff that we were still expecting to receive this information 
and I included it in my email of November 8th. However, it was not part of the packet for 
the November16 meeting and not discussed at the meeting itself. It therefore remains 
outstanding and it should be addressed at a future meeting. 
 
The answer to this question is difficult because the question itself is complex.  There are 
several variables involved in projections concerning assessed value.  There is no simple 
equation that relates bonding capacity to each percent of assessed value increase or decrease 
due to the fact that bonds last for many years and bonding capacity is projected over many 
years, not just a single year.  Future bonding capacity is also related to projections of interest 
rates in large part due to the commitment to adhere to a maximum tax rate that will not 
exceed $60 per $100,000 in assessed value. 
 
“*Scope of Work* 
Q1. Can the video of the RFP finalist presentations be placed on emeryvillecenter.org? 
R1. District Staff to investigate.” 
 
This question was raised at the October meeting. At the November 3 City / School 
meeting, during my Chair's report, I mentioned that this item was still outstanding in part 
in order to remind District Staff that we were still expecting a resolution to this request 
and I included it in my email of November 8th. However, it is still not on the 
emeryvillecenter.org site. It therefore remains outstanding and the material should be 
added to the emeryvillecenter.org site. 
 
The answer to this question is that the District does not have a copy of the video being 
requested.  If a copy currently exists, it is most likely in the video file archives of the City of 
Emeryville.  We have made a request to City staff to assist us in verifying whether a copy 
exists or not in the archive.  As soon as we have that information, we will report it to the COC.  
If a copy does exist, we will post it on the emeryvillecenter.org website.  The files, if they exist, 
will undoubtedly be very large and will take a great deal of time for anyone to download 
from the website and watch. 
 
“Q2. Can the contract for pre-construction services with Nexus Partners be added to 
emeryvillecenter.org? 
R2. District Staff to follow-up.” 
 
This question was raised at the October meeting. At the November 3 City / School 
meeting, during my Chair's report, I mentioned that this item was still outstanding in part 
in order to remind District Staff that we were still expecting a resolution to this request 



and I included it in my email of November 8th. It appears that these materials are now 
available at http://emeryvillecenter.org/archives_reports.htm but I do not recall receiving 
an update on this at the November 16 meeting, and so it would be useful to hear if 
these represent all the documents related to Nexus' pre-construction work or whether 
there is more forthcoming. So, from my perspective, the Committee has asked multiple 
times in multiple ways for the same information and while some questions get resolved, 
and we get updates on others, there remain too many questions that seem to fall 
through the cracks. 
 
The documents that have already been posted to the emeryvillecenter.org website represent 
all of the documents related to the Nexus pre-construction work. 
 
This is where we are. I don't really care about assigning blame. Let's just fix it. I do 
believe District Staff have good intentions, I just want all our efforts to translate into 
more timely dissemination of information. 
 
At the November 16 meeting we added some new questions which I'll summarize now: 
 
*Finance* 
Q6: The list of warrants for October was not provided. This information should be sent 
to the entire Finance Subcommittee (Carver, Cooley, Fine, Johnson, Rauch, & 
Schuman). The Finance Subcommittee wants these every month. 
R6: Terri said this information would be provided. 
 
The October 2011 warrants list was presented to Charles Schuman in his meeting with Terri 
Ryland and Roy Miller on November 8, 2011.  He recommended that the warrant list not be 
included in the information to the full COC.  That warrant list is being distributed to the entire 
COC in the packets of the 12.14.11 COC meeting and is posted on the emeryvillecenter.org 
website on the COC page containing the COC packets for the 12.14.11 meeting.  The list of 
warrants will be included in all future financial reports to the COC. 
 
*Scope of Work* 
Q3: Three RFPs were issued in 2009, for an ECCL architect, an ECCL contractor, and 
an ECCL CEQA NEPA. The RFPs are available at emeryvillecenter.org. The Committee 
would like to see the responses to these RFPs from those selected and any documents 
related to those selections, such as letters of intent or other documents related to any 
pre-construction work. 
R3: Scope of Work subcommittee to follow-up with Roy to get these documents 
distributed to the entire Committee and on emeryvillecenter.org. 
 
The RFP responses are confidential due to the fact that contracts with each of the consultants 
concerned have not yet been awarded and executed.  As soon as those contracts are 
executed, the RFP responses will be provided to the COC and they will also be posted on the 
emeryvillecenter.org website.  There is a Letter of Intent that Emery Unified has sent to 
Turner Construction.  That letter is included in the documents that are being distributed to the 
entire COC in the packets of the 12.14.11 COC meeting and is posted on the 



emeryvillecenter.org website on the COC page containing the COC packets for the 12.14.11 
meeting.   
 
My notes may not always be complete or accurate. If you have an addition or correction, 
let me know. I would just conclude by saying that, on the one hand, I am glad that 
District Staff have gotten to know me well enough that they recognize that I am thick-
skinned enough that direct public criticism of my manner does not bother me. However, 
I would note that even private expression of disfavor with a member's actions, and much 
moreso public expression of same, has a very powerfully intimidating effect on others. 
District Staff could promote the most open dialogue by reserving those kinds of 
interactions for me. 
 
Brian W. Carver 
 

 

 































































Exhibit A

MOU #2, Budget

Emeryville Center of Community Life (ECCL)
07/2011-06/2014 Budget
(Note: all $ amounts x 1,000)

Draft for discussion
03/16/11

2011-12     
Fiscal Yr. 

Total
1 Yr. Total

2012-13     
Fiscal Yr. 

Total
2 Yr. Total

2013-14     
Fiscal Yr. 

Total
3 Yr. Total

7/11-6/17       
6 Yr. Project 

Total
Line-item of the Work Object Code

Main Project Construction Cost 6260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $71,250

Architect Fee (Main Project) 6210 $1,810 $1,810 $2,440 $4,250 $395 $4,645 $7,645

Agency Fees/Permits 6220 DSA $100 $100 $550 $650 $0 $650 $650
6230 CDE $60 $60 $90 $150 $0 $150 $150

6270 other fees $120 $120 $550 $670 $0 $670 $670

Site/Construction Testing & Environ. 6157 CEQA study $200 $200 $0 $200 $0 $200 $200
6240 prelim. tests $100 $100 $0 $100 $0 $100 $100

6140 survey $50 $50 $0 $50 $0 $50 $50
6280 construct. test $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $840
6290 const.inspect. $0 $0 $0 $0 $30 $30 $780

ESS Gym Rebuild Project
   Consultant Fees 6210/5825/5830 $390 $390 $260 $650 $0 $650 $650
   Construction Cost 6260/6280/6290 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000

Interim Housing and Moves 5650 $800 $800 $900 $1,700 $1,300 $3,000 $3,000

Fixtures and Equipment 6400 $120 $120 $180 $300 $240 $540 $3,440

Agency Process Consultant Fee 5825 $36 $36 $36 $72 $36 $108 $216
Legal Fee 5845 $36 $36 $36 $72 $36 $108 $216
Funding Advocacy 5825 $36 $36 $36 $72 $36 $108 $180
Web/Communications 5830 $24 $24 $24 $48 $24 $72 $132
Professional Consultants (non-Arch.) 5830 $180 $180 $180 $360 $180 $540 $920

Staff (teacher) stipends 2000-3999 $60 $60 $30 $90 $20 $110 $150
Project Staff (Salary & Benefits) 2000-3999 $504 $504 $504 $1,008 $504 $1,512 $3,132
"Fellows" Programs 2000-3999 $72 $72 $72 $144 $72 $216 $372

Events 5200/5600/5800 $72 $72 $72 $144 $72 $216 $360
Supplies 4300 $12 $12 $12 $24 $12 $36 $72
Printing 5870 $24 $24 $24 $48 $24 $72 $132
Postage & Delivery 5900 $12 $12 $12 $24 $12 $36 $60
Computer 4400 $12 $12 $12 $24 $12 $36 $60
Travel & Conference 5200 $12 $12 $12 $24 $12 $36 $60

Subtotal $4,842 $4,842 $6,032 $10,874 $9,017 $19,891 $101,487

Parking Contingency 6260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
Project Contingency 6297 $600 $600 $700 $1,300 $700 $2,000 $2,000
Construction Contingency 6260 $600 $600 $1,000 $1,600 $6,500
Reserve 6298 $3,500 $3,500 $0 $3,500 $0 $3,500 $6,200

Allocation of reserve funds:
City lease extension $1,000 $1,000 $0 $1,000 $0 $1,000 $2,250

EUSD MOU #1 reimb. $500 $500 $0 $500 $0 $500 $500
Remaining unallocated reserve $3,450

TOTALS $8,942 $8,942 $7,732 $16,274 $10,717 $26,991 $118,187

City expense pre-MOU 2 $1,806

TOTAL for MOU #2 (7/11-6/14) $26,991

TOTAL for Project (7/11-6/17) $119,993







































   
 

-1- 
5000 Hopyard Road, Suite 335    Pleasanton, CA  94588    Tel: 925.734.6600    Fax: 925.734.6611    www.vtdcpa.com 

 
F R E S N O    L A G U N A  H I L L S    P L E A S A N T O N    R A N C H O  C U C A M O N G A    P A L O  A L T O    S A C R A M E N T O  
 

 

 
November 18, 2011 

 
 
Emery Unified School District 
4727 San Pablo Avenue 
Emeryville, CA 94608 
 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Emery Unified School District.  
We will perform the required annual financial audit of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds and the required 
performance audit to ensure that the funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed for the period 
beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011 in accordance with the compliance requirements of Section 1 of 
Article XIII A of the California Constitution. 
 
Financial Audit 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the Building (Measure J) Fund of Emery Unified School District for the 
one year period beginning July 1, 2010 and ending June 30, 2011.  The financial statements will present only the 
Building (Measure J) Fund and will not purport to, and will not be intended to present fairly the financial position 
and results of operations of the Emery Unified School District in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Audit Objectives 
 
The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether the Building (Measure J) Fund financial 
statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles.  Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of the accounting records of Palos Verdes 
Peninsula Unified School District and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such 
opinions.  If our opinions on the financial statements are other than unqualified, we will fully discuss the reasons 
with you in advance.  If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not 
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement. 
 



 

-2- 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government 
Auditing Standards.  The report on internal control and compliance will include a statement that the report is 
intended solely for the information and use of management, the body or individuals charged with governance, 
others within the entity, and specific legislative or regulatory bodies and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties.  If during our audit we become aware that Emery Unified 
School District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will 
communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally 
accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
 
Management Responsibilities 
 
Management is responsible for the Building (Measure J) Fund financial statements and all accompanying 
information as well as all representations contained therein.  As part of the audit, we will assist with preparation 
of your financial statements and related notes.  You are responsible for making all management decisions and 
performing all management functions relating to the financial statements and related notes and for accepting full 
responsibility for such decisions.  You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation letter 
our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and that you have reviewed and approved the financial 
statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have accepted responsibility for them.  Further, you are 
required to designate an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee any nonaudit services 
we provide and for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them. 
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls, including monitoring 
ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met; for the selection and application 
of accounting principles; and for the fair presentation in the financial statements of the Emery Unified School 
District, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information available to us and for 
ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and properly recorded.  Your responsibilities 
include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the 
representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current 
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and 
for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management, (2) 
employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud or illegal acts could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.  Your responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any 
allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications from employees, 
former employees, grantors, regulators, or others.  In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring 
that the entity complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants for taking timely and 
appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that we 
may report.  
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit findings and 
recommendations.  Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous financial audits, attestation 
engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives 
section of this letter.  This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant 
findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other 
studies.  You are also responsible for providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for 
providing that information. 



 

-3- 

 
Audit Procedures - General 
 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of transactions to be examined and the 
areas to be tested.  We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent 
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are 
attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity.  Because the 
determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable 
assurance of detecting abuse. 
 
Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and because we will not perform a 
detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected 
by us.  In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or 
governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  However, we 
will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets that 
come to our attention.  We will also inform you of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come 
to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential.  Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by 
our audit and does not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors. 
 
Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts, 
and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain 
other assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial 
institutions.  We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may 
bill you for responding to this inquiry.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written 
representations from you about the financial statements and related matters. 
 
Audit Procedures - Internal Controls 
 
Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal control, 
sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the nature, timing, 
and extent of further audit procedures.  Tests of controls may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain 
controls that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial 
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance 
matters that have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.  Our tests, if performed, will be less in 
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be 
expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 
An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies.  However, 
during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance internal control related 
matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Audit Procedures - Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, 
we will perform tests of Emery Unified School District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants.  However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an 
opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued 
pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 
 



 

-4- 

Performance Audit 
 
The purpose of the Performance Audit is to meet the Proposition 39 requirement for the Measure XX Bond 
proceeds to ensure compliance with Section 1 of Article 13A of the California Constitution.  This includes that the 
Proposition 39 Bond proceeds are expended only on the specific projects listed in the bond language approved by 
the voters and no Bond proceeds are being spent on administrative salaries or any other expenses that would 
otherwise be the obligation of the District’s General Fund.  The Performance Audit will be conducted in 
accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Our procedures for the Performance Audit will be as follows: 
 

 Procure a detail of the accounting for the expenditures of the Measure J bonds. 
 Review the detailed accounting of expenditures to determine if proceeds are being spent on administrative 

salaries or any other school operating expenses. 
 From a sample of construction expenditures from the detailed accounting of expenditures, review 

expenditures to determine if proceeds expended are for specific projects as listed in the voter approved 
bond language.  We will select all materially significant expenditures and at least 25 percent of the total 
expenditures for the year.  Expenditures from all projects will be included in the sample. 

 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP and constitutes 
confidential information.  However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to 
make certain audit documentation available to third parties for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve 
audit findings, or to carry out oversight responsibilities.  We will notify you of any such request.  If requested, 
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 
personnel.  Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the 
aforementioned parties.  These parties may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information contained 
therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by the California Department of Education, the California State 
Controller, or during any pending board investigation, disciplinary action, or legal action involving the licensee or 
the licensee’s firm. 
 
Terri A. Montgomery is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  Our fee for the Financial Audit and Performance Audit 
services will be $2,000 for the financial audit and $1,500 for the performance audit for the period ending June 30, 
2011.  In addition to such payments for personal services, auditors may be reimbursed for such travel as may be 
necessary, with mileage computed at the approved Internal Revenue Service rate per mile.  However, no 
additional costs are anticipated at this time.  Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work 
progresses and are payable on presentation.  In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if your 
account becomes 90 days or more overdue and may not be resumed until your account is paid in full.  If we elect 
to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written 
notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report.  You will be obligated to compensate us for 
all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination.  The above fee 
is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will 
not be encountered during the audit.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and 
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 
 



 

-5- 

If a dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by 
mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial Mediation Rules before 
resorting to litigation.  The costs of any mediation proceedings shall be shared equally by all parties.  The District 
and Auditors both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the accountant to the client will be submitted for 
resolution by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association.  Such arbitration 
will be binding and final.  IN AGREEING TO ARBITRATION, WE BOTH ACKNOWLEDGE THAT, IN THE 
EVENT OF DISPUTE OVER FEES, EACH OF US IS GIVING UP THE RIGHT TO HAVE THE DISPUTE 
DECIDED IN A COURT OF LAW BEFORE A JUDGE OR JURY AND INSTEAD WE ARE ACCEPTING 
THE USE OF ARBITRATION FOR RESOLUTION.  
 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP has owners that are not licensed as certified public accountants as permitted 
under Section 5079 of the California Business and Professions Code.  It is not anticipated that any of the non-
licensee owners will be performing audit services for the agency. 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external peer review 
report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during 
the period of the contract.  Our 2008 peer review report accompanies this letter. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Emery Unified School District and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you agree 
with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Terri A. Montgomery 
of Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Co., LLP 
 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Emery Unified School District. 
 
By:  
 
Title:  
 
Date:  
 





                

 
DISTRICT OFFICE: 4727 San Pablo Avenue, Emeryville, CA 94608 – Ph: 510-601-4906 – Fx: 510-601-4913 

www.emeryusd.k12.ca.us 

 
 
 
 

 
July 26, 2010 
 
 
 
Turner Construction 
Mr. Bob Diaz 
1625 Clay Street 
Oakland, CA   94612 
 
 
Re: The joint facilities project between the Emery Unified School District and the 

City of Emeryville 
 
 
Dear Mr. Diaz: 
 
As you know, the Emery Unified School District (“District”) is in the process of 
considering multiple financing options for the joint facilities project with the City of 
Emeryville.  The District is also in the process of revising the project scope. 
 
At the conclusion of the Request for Proposal process for this project, the District 
determined that Turner Construction (“Turner”) is the general contractor the District 
wishes to utilize for the job.  As I am sure you can appreciate, however, the District 
cannot proceed with any sort of formal contract or commitment with Turner until it has 
obtained certainty with respect to proceeding with the project (both in terms of obtaining 
adequate financing and finalizing the project plans). 
 
That said, the District does wish to notify you of its intent to utilize Turner in the event 
that adequate financing is secured, and if the District proceeds with the project. 
 
Do not hesitate to contact me if you wish to discuss this matter. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 
John Sugiyama, Ed.D. 
Superintendent of Schools 

John Sugiyama, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 
 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
Miguel Dwin  
President 
  
Cheryl Webb  
Vice President 
  
Joshua Simon 
Board Clerk 
 
Pat Hooper 
County Representative 
 
Melodi K. Dice  
Board Member 
 
 
 
 
SCHOOL SITES 
 
Anna Yates Elementary School 
Jaguanana Lathan, Principal 
1070  41st Street 
Emeryville, CA 94608 
 
 
Emery Secondary School 
Anakarita Allen, Principal 
1100  47th Street 
Emeryville, CA 94608 
 


	12.14.11 COC Agenda for 121411 COC meeting
	11.16.11 COC reg meeting minutes draft
	12.07.11 annotated responses to Brian Carver memo of 11.18.11
	W Kadi on costs of issuance
	reimb resolution and backup
	03.16.11 draft ECCL MOU 2 Exhibit A, Budget
	Sheet1

	aug detail with budget
	sept detail with budget
	oct detail with budget
	Bond Audit engagement letter - June 2011
	oct warrant report
	Turner_LOI
	President
	Vice President
	Board Member
	Anakarita Allen, Principal



